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Mess, Camie

From: Mess, Camie
Sent: Wednesday, April 25, 2018 5:18 PM
To: Tim Tessier (tt@bdarchitects.com)
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: BAR Actions - April 17, 2018 - 809 Rugby Road

April 25, 2018 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness (Historic Conservation District) 
BAR 18-04-02 
809 Rugby Road 
Tax Parcel 050011000 
Andrew and Dixie Mills, Owner/Tim Tessier, Applicant  
Renovation and screened porch 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural 
Review (BAR) on April 17, 2018. The following action was taken: 
 
Earnst moved: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Historic Conservation 
District Design Guidelines for New Construction and Additions, I move to find that the proposed renovation and 
addition of the screened in porch and patio satisfies the BAR’s criteria and guidelines and is compatible with this 
property and other properties in the Rugby Road Historic Conservation district, and that the BAR approves the 
application as submitted, with these changes  

 two parking spaces off of Winston Road 
 shed structure at west side of garage to have double doors 
 replacement windows to be aluminum clad 

Also, the BAR supported the use of composite-wood shutters and that no re-submittal was necessary if the front 
porch was not enlarged.  However, the BAR would like updated drawings to be circulated via email, for the archives. 
Balut seconded. Approved (5-0). 
 
This certificate of appropriateness shall expire in 18 months (October 17, 2019), unless within that time period you have 
either: been issued a building permit for construction of the improvements if one is required, or if no building permit is 
required, commenced the project. You may request an extension of the certificate of appropriateness before this 
approval expires for one additional year for reasonable cause. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Jeff Werner at 434-970-3130 or wernerjb@charlottesville.org. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 
Camie Mess 
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CITY	OF	CHARLOTTESVILLE	
BOARD	OF	ARCHITECTURAL	REVIEW	
STAFF	REPORT		
April	17,	2018	
	
Certificate	of	Appropriateness	Application	(Historical	Conservation	District)	
BAR	18‐04‐02	
809	Rugby	Road	
Tax	Parcel	050011000	
Andrew	and	Dixie	Mills,	Owner/Tim	Tessier,	Applicant		
Renovation	and	screened	porch		
	
Background	
	
809	Rugby	Road	and	the	shed	are	contributing	structures	in	the	Rugby	Road	Historic	Conservation	
District.	This	two‐story,	Colonial	Revival	style	dwelling	features	a	two‐story	stretcher‐bond	brick	
core	capped	by	a	side‐gabled	slate	roof	with	two	exterior‐end	brick	chimneys.	(Historic	survey	is	
attached)	
	
Application	
	

 Coat	the	brick	with	a	lime‐based	mixture,	which	will	allow	the	brick	to	breathe	
 Paint	of	the	exterior	trim	
 Repoint	of	the	brick	where	necessary	
 Repair	and	replace	the	slate	roof	(in	kind)	
 Repair	and	replace	siding	(in	kind)	
 Alter	specified	windows	and	doors	(this	will	typically	be	aligned	to	existing	opening	heads	

and	jambs,	especially	at	existing	brick	walls)	
 Garage	opening	will	be	fit	with	new	carriage‐style	doors	with	an	awning	above	
 Extend	the	front	porch	with	pediment	(proportion	will	be	no	deeper	than	it	is	wide)	with	

materials	and	trim	to	match	the	existing	porch	
 The	window	located	over	the	front	porch	will	be	enlarged	vertically	to	align	with	the	rest	of	

the	second	story	windows	
 New	operable,	painted	wood	shutters	will	replace	the	existing	rotting,	false	shutters	
 Reconfigure	the	existing	asphalt	driveway	to	allow	two	90	degree	parking	spaces	
 Construction	of	a	screened	porch	and	a	backyard	patio	
 Proposed	outline	for	a	future	fence	
 Option	of	demolishing	the	westernmost	low	addition	adjacent	to	the	garage	

	
Materials	are	specified	in	the	submission,	with	paint	sample	and	colors	to	be	presented	to	the	BAR	
at	the	meeting.	
	
Existing	trees	to	remain	with	the	exception	of	one	that	is	in	conflict	with	the	proposed	screened	
porch	location.		
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Criteria,	Standards,	and	Guidelines	
	
Review	Criteria	Generally	
 
Sec.	34‐341(a)	of	the	City	Code	states	that,		
In	considering	a	particular	application	the	BAR	shall	approve	the	application	unless	it	finds:	
(1)	That	the	proposal	does	not	meet	specific	standards	set	forth	within	this	division	or	applicable	
provisions	of	the	conservation	district	design	guidelines;	and	
(2)	The	proposal	is	incompatible	with	the	historic,	cultural	or	architectural	character	of	the	
conservation	district	in	which	the	property	is	located.	
	
Standards	for	Review	of	New	Construction	and	Additions	include:	
	
	(1)	 Whether	the	form,	height,	scale,	mass	and	placement	of	the	proposed	construction	are	

visually	and	architecturally	compatible	with	the	site	and	the	applicable	conservation	
district;	

(2)	 The	harmony	of	the	proposed	changes	in	terms	of	overall	proportion	and	the	size	and	
placement	of	entrances	and	windows;	

(3)	 The	impact	of	the	proposed	change	on	the	essential	architectural	form	and	integrity	of	the	
existing	building;	

(4)	 The	effect,	with	respect	to	architectural	considerations,	of	the	proposed	change	on	the	
conservation	district	neighborhood;	

(5)	 Any	applicable	provisions	of	the	city's	conservation	district	design	guidelines.	
	
	
Pertinent	Design	Review	Guidelines	for	New	Construction	and	Additions	
	
Building	Location	–	setback	and	spacing	
1.	Align	a	new	building	close	to	the	average	building	setback	line	on	the	same	street,	if	established,	or	
consistent	with	the	surrounding	area.	
2.	Maintain	average	spacing	between	buildings	on	the	same	street.	
	
Building	Scale	–	height	and	massing	
1.	Keep	the	footprint,	and	massing	of	new	buildings	consistent	with	the	neighborhood	characteristics	
and	compatible	with	the	character	of	buildings	on	the	same	street.	
2.	Keep	the	height	and	width	of	new	buildings	within	the	prevailing	average	height	and	width.	
Exceptions	up	to	200%	of	the	prevailing	height	and	width	may	be	approved	by	the	BAR	when	
contextually	appropriate.	
3.	An	addition	needs	to	be	perceived	as	an	addition	and	therefore	should	not	visually	overpower	the	
existing	building	in	scale	and	design.	
4.	An	accessory	building	should	appear	secondary	to	the	main	building	in	scale	and	design.	
5.	Larger	buildings	(commercial	or	multi‐family)	otherwise	permitted	by	zoning	should	be	designed	
and	articulated	to	be	compatible	with	the	scale	of	the	majority	of	adjacent	buildings	on	the	same	
street	or	block.	
	
Building	Form	–	roofs	and	porches	
1.	Roof	forms	should	reference	contributing	buildings	on	the	same	street	or	surrounding	area.	Other	
roof	forms	may	be	approved	by	the	BAR	when	contextually	appropriate.	
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2.	If	many	of	the	contributing	buildings	on	the	same	street	have	porches,	then	it	is	strongly	
recommended	that	the	design	of	a	new	residence	includes	a	porch	or	similar	form	of	
similar	width	and	depth.	
	
Building	Openings	–	orientation,	doors	and	windows	
1.	A	single	entrance	door	(or	main	entrance	of	a	multifamily	dwelling)	facing	the	street	is	
recommended.	
2.	Window	and	door	patterns	and	the	ratio	of	solids	(wall	area)	to	voids	(window	and	door	area)	of	
new	buildings	should	be	compatible	with	contributing	buildings	in	the	surrounding	area.	
3.	Windows	should	be	simple	shapes	compatible	with	those	on	contributing	buildings,	which	are	
generally	vertically	oriented	in	residential	areas.	
	
Building	Materials	and	Textures	
1.	The	selection	of	materials	and	textures	for	a	new	building	should	relate	architecturally	to	the	
district,	and	should	be	compatible	with	and	complementary	to	neighboring	buildings.	
2.	Long‐lasting,	durable	and	natural	materials	are	preferred,	including	brick,	wood,	stucco,	and	
cementitious	siding	and	standing	seam	metal	roofs.	Clear	glass	windows	(VLT	of	70%	or	more)	are	
preferred.	
	
Building	Paint	
1.	Painting	unpainted	brick	or	other	masonry	is	discouraged	because	it	is	irreversible	and	may	cause	
moisture	problems.	
	
Site	
1.	Fences	or	walls	that	abut	a	City	street	(or	fences	located	in	a	side	yard	between	a	street	and	the	
front	of	the	principal	structure	on	a	lot)	should	not	exceed	three	and	one‐half	feet	in	height.	
	
RUGBY	ROAD	Historic	Conservation	District	adopted	September	2,	2014:	
	
Architectural	character‐defining	features:	

 1.5,	2.0,	or	2.5	story	dwellings	with	stucco,	red	brick	or	painted	brick,	or	wood	siding,	
 Front	porticos	or	porches	
 Slate	shingle	roofs,	gable	or	hipped	roof	forms,	roof	dormers,	
 Contributing	outbuildings,	and	deep‐set,	planted	front	yards	mostly	unpaved	with	no	

visible	garages.	
	
Discussion	and	Recommendations	
 
Staff	commends	the	applicant	on	the	thoroughness	of	the	submission.		
	
The	regulations	and	guidelines	for	projects	within	a	Historic	Conservation	District	(HCD)	are,	by	
design,	less	rigid	than	those	for	an	ADC	District	or	an	IPP.	The	HCD	designations	are	intended	to	
preserve	the	character‐defining	elements	of	the	neighborhoods	and	to	assure	that	new	construction	
is	not	inappropriate	to	that	character,	while	minimally	imposing	on	current	residents	who	may	
want	to	upgrade	their	homes.	Within	the	existing	HCDs	are	buildings	and/or	areas	that	might	easily	
qualify	for	an	ADC	District	or	as	an	IPP;	however,	in	evaluating	proposals	within	HCDs,	the	BAR	may	
apply	only	the	HCD	requirements	and	guidelines.		
	
This	is	a	corner	lot,	thus	the	evaluation	of	proposed	alterations	to	the	rear	of	the	house.		



4 
 

	
The	BAR	should	discuss	whether	painting	the	brick	is	appropriate.	While	painting	is	generally	
discouraged	because	it	is	irreversible	and	may	cause	moisture	problems,	the	applicant	has	
researched	a	lime‐based	paint	product	that	might	mitigate	these	concerns.	Additionally,	there	are	
other	buildings	nearby	with	painted	masonry.		
	
A	character‐defining	feature	of	the	Rugby	Road	Historic	Conservation	District	is	deep‐set,	planted	
front	yards,	mostly	unpaved,	with	no	visible	garages.	The	BAR	may	wish	to	recommend	some	
planting	or	request	to	see	a	landscape	plan.		
	
Other	than	those	discussion	points,	staff	finds	the	proposed	changes	to	the	house	and	the	
construction	of	the	screened	porch	and	deck	appropriate	within	the	context	of	the	guidelines.	
	
Suggested	Motion	
	
Having	considered	the	standards	set	forth	within	the	City	Code,	including	City	Historic	
Conservation	District	Design	Guidelines	for	New	Construction	and	Additions,	I	move	to	find	that	the	
proposed	renovation	and	addition	of	the	screened	in	porch	and	patio	satisfies	the	BAR’s	criteria	and	
guidelines	and	is	compatible	with	this	property	and	other	properties	in	the	Rugby	Road	Historic	
Conservation	district,	and	that	the	BAR	approves	the	application	as	submitted	(or	with	the	
following	modifications…).	
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